
CAPSULE SUMMARY 
BA-234 
Hunter's Mill House 
1719 Hunter's Mill Road 
White Hall, Baltimore County 
1818 
Private 

Hunter Mill House is representative of modest Federal-style brick dwellings constructed during 

the early 19th century in Baltimore County. The property, which included Vaughn's Venture and 

Mount Joy, remained in the Hunter family for nearly one hundred years from 1818 to 1915. Peter 

Hunter had purchased a tract of land called Mount Joy from George Elliott. Hunter's Mill (BA-

233), a grist mill adjacent to Hunter Mill House, was constructed by Pleasant Hunter in 1863. 

John Hunter sold a portion of the property to Pleasant Hunter in 1869. Pleasant Hunter owned 

this property until his death in 1915, a period of approximately fifty-five years. At this the 

property was transferred to Isabella Hunter and then immediately sold to Samuel J. Jones. In 

1954, the property was purchased by Pauline Sharp. The property continues to be under the 

ownership of Pauline Sharp and Hunter Mill Restoration, LLC. 

Facing northwest and sited close to the road, the Hunter Mill House is a two-and-a-half-story 

brick dwelling constructed circa 1818. Raised on a solid random-rubble stone foundation this 

dwelling features an L-shaped footprint and is constructed in a five-course American brick bond. 

The cross-gable roof is clad with asphalt shingles, and the three interior-end brick chimneys are 

corbeled. Features of the dwelling include square-edged wood sills and lug lintels, overhanging 

eaves, and a molded wood cornice with returns. A shed-roof wood-frame addition was 

constructed in the angle of the ell on the southwest elevation and is clad with wood shingles. The 

first story is four bays wide with two center entries flanked by 6/6 wood-sash windows. The 

second story features four 6/6 wood-sash windows. The full-width one-story porch covers the 

center two entries, as well as the third entry at the basement level. 
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historic Hunter's Mill House 

other William Hunter House 

2. Location 
street and number 1719 Hunter Mill Road 

city, town White Hall 

county Baltimore County 

Inventory No. BA-234 

not for publication 

vicinity 

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners) 

name Pauline Sharp 

street and number 1719 Hunter Mill Road 

city, town White Hall state MD 

4. Location of Legal Description 
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Baltimore County Courthouse 

city, town Towson 

5. Primary Location of Additional Data 
Contributing Resource in National Register District 
Contributing Resource in Lo¢al Historic District 
Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
Recorded by HASS/HAER 
Historic Structure Report or Research Report 
Other 

6. Classification 

Category 
district 

X building(s) 
structure 

site 

object 

Ownership 

public 
_..)(_ private 

both 

Current Function 
agriculture 
commerce/trade 
defense 

X domestic 
education 
funerary 
government 
health care 
industry 

landscape 
recreation/culture 
religion 
social 
transportation 
work in progress 
unknown 
vacanUnot in use 
other: 

telephone Not Available 

zip code 21161-9429 

tax map and parcel: 17/307 

liber 14280 folio 147 

Resource Count 
Contributing Noncontributing 
__ I buildings 

__ l 

sites 
structures 
objects 

__ o_ Total 

Number of Contributing Resources 
previously listed in the Inventory 



7. Description 

Condition 

excellent 
_x_ good 

fair 

deteriorated 
ruins 
altered 
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Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it 
exists today. 

EXTERIOR 

Facing northwest and sited close to the road on a sloping grassy lot, the Hunter Mill House is a two-and-a-half-story brick 
dwelling constructed circa 1818. Raised on a solid random-rubble stone foundation this dwelling features an L-shaped footprint 
and is constructed in a five-course American brick bond. The cross-gable roof is clad with asphalt shingles, and the three interior­
end brick chimneys are corbeled. Features of the dwelling include square-edged wood sills and lug lintels, overhanging eaves, 
and a molded wood cornice with returns. A shed-roof wood-frame addition was constructed in the angle of the ell on the 
southwest elevation and is clad with wood shingles. 

The basement level of the fayade has two small rectangular window openings fitted with wood square bars. A single-leaf door 
underneath the porch provides an entrance into the basement. The first story is four bays wide with two center entries flanked by 
616 wood-sash windows. Above the recessed entrances are three-light hopper transoms. The second story features four 6/6 wood­
sash windows. The full-width one-story porch covers the center two entries, as well as the third entry at the basement level. The 
porch is supported by chamfered wood posts, square balusters, and sits on a random-rubble stone pier foundation. 

The southwest elevation of the Hunter Mill House exhibits two 616 wood-sash windows and a single-leaf pressed vertical board 
door at the basement level. The first story contains one 616 wood-sash window. The second story has two 616 windows and the 
upper-half story features two 4-light wood casement windows. The shed roof one-story addition constructed on the southwest 
elevation contains a group often fixed wood windows. 

The southeast elevation (rear) exhibits one 3-light wood awning window in the basement. The upper half-story contains a 4-light 
wood casement window. A single-leaf entry with a 9-light flush Dutch door provides access to the shed-roof addition in the angle 
of the ell on the first story. 

Two 616 windows and one single-leaf wood door are exhibited on the first story of the northeast elevation. The second story 
contains two 616 windows and the upper half-story is lighted with two 4-light wood casement windows. 

Located southwest of the dwelling, Hunter's Mill (BA-233) was constructed in 1863 according to the date in the hay hood over 
the fayade. The mill stands three-and-a-half stories high on a raised random rubble stone foundation . The northwest elevation is 
three bays wide with a center doorway on each story. The side elevations are four bays wide. It is constructed of wood frame and 
is covered with weatherboard siding. Features include 6/6 wood-sash windows, a molded wood cornice, and two mill wheels. 

INTERIOR 

The Hunter Mill House features an L-shaped plan with two front rooms, a living room and a dining room, and a kitchen in the rear 
ell. The living room contains the closed stringer stair to the basement and the second floor. The living room features original 
tongue-and-groove heart pine floorboards and the walls and ceiling are painted original lath and plaster. Around the perimeter of 
the room is the original flush wood baseboard. The original wood casings for the windows are flush with an astragal molding. 
The exterior door is one light over two panels, features the original hardware, and has a two-inch flush wood casing. Alterations 
to the room include the filling in of the fireplace with plaster, removal of the mantle, applied crown molding, and inset shelves 
have been installed flanking the original fireplace . 

Original elements and details in the living room including the floorboards, walls, baseboard, window and door casings are similar 
to the dining room elements. The exterior door is a 4-panel single-leaf door with a 20th-century lock box and a 3-light hopper 
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transom. The replacement crown molding is similar to that in the dining room. The fireplace has a brick hearth and a simple 
Federal mantle. The wood mantle features a mantle shelf with a large fascia board above flush pilasters. The molding profile 
from the shelf to the middle fascia board includes a splay, fascia, cavetto, several fillets, and an ovolo molding with egg-and-dart 
ornament. The pilasters feature a cyma reversa at the capital. 

The kitchen in the rear ell of the original dwelling is the most altered room of the three on the first floor. The original materials in 
the kitchen include the lath and plaster walls, and the original ceiling joists are exposed. The floor is covered with replacement 
ceramic tiles. Two exterior doors in the kitchen are both one light over two panels. The window and door casings are late-20th­
century replacements. Around the perimeter of the room is late-20th-century wainscoting of pressed beaded vertical boards. 
Behind the wainscoting the original flush wood baseboard is visible. The fireplace contains the original hardware--swing arm, 
and features a marble stone surround with a cyma reversa molding. The fireplace mantle features beaded wainscoting from floor 
to ceiling. Flanking the fireplace are inset shelves and cabinets. The cabinets are inscribed with Heureux Les Debonnaires, 
Matt.5.5. 

The enclosed porch on the first story is located in the one-story addition off the southwest kitchen wall. The ceiling joists visible 
in the kitchen extend out to support the porch ceiling. Around the perimeter of the room is a three-inch-high baseboard. 

Three bedrooms and one bathroom are located on the second floor. Originally, it appears there were a total of three rooms on the 
second floor. Original door casings remain and the addition of two rooms is apparent with the use of differing size openings and 
door casings. The closed stringer stair has a doorway at the landing. The original door and window casings are similar to the first 
floor. Late-20th-century closets were installed in the hall in the rear ell . The lath and plaster walls are wallpapered. The hall 
contains a closed stringer stair to the attic. The attic door to stair features molded raised paneling on the outside and is flush on 
the inside. 

A closed stringer stair accessed in the living room underneath the second floor stair leads to the basement. The basement consists 
of two rooms in the main block of the dwelling. The front basement room is entirely whitewashed and has one exterior vertical 
plank door. The rear room has a doorway and does not feature any finishing elements and has random-rubble stone walls. 



8. Significance 

Period 

- 1600-1699 
- 1700-1799 
...x.. 1800-1899 
...x.. 1900-1999 
- 2000-

Areas of Significance 

agriculture 
archeology 

...X.. architecture 
art 
commerce 
communications 
community planning 
conservation 

Specific dates 1818 

Construction dates 1818 

Evaluation for: 

National Register 

Inventory No. BA-234 

Check and justify below 

economics 
education 
engineering 
entertainment/ 
recreation 
ethnic heritage 
exploration/ 
settlement 

_ health/medicine 
_ industry 
_ invention 
_ landscape architecture 
_ law 
_ literature 
_ maritime industry 
_military 

performing arts 
philospohy 
politics/government 
religion 
science 
social history 
transportation 
other: 

Architect/Builder Unknown 

Maryland Register x not evaluated 

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of 
the history of the resource and its context. (For compliance reports, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.} 

SIGNIFICANCE STATEMENT 

Hunter Mill House at 1719 Hunter Mill Road is representative of modest Federal-style brick dwellings constructed during the early 
19th century in Baltimore County. The property, which included Vaughn's Venture and Mount Joy, remained in the Hunter 
family for nearly one hundred years from 1818 to 1915. 

HISTORY 

Constructed circa 1818, the Federal-sty le Hunter Mill House is located in the Tenth District near the historic village of White Hall. 
The Tenth District is highly agricultural with over 48 square miles within its boundaries. In 1881, it was noted to having a 
population of2,374, which was down by 192 since the 1870 census.(1) The district is bounded by Harford County on the east, the 
Eleventh District on the south, Seventh and Eighth Districts on the west, and Seventh District on the north. 

The village of White Hall developed during the late 19th century due to the running of the Northern Central Railway in the area. 
With a population of 100 people in 1881, White Hall was considered at this time one of the principal milk stations on the Northern 
Central Railway. The surrounding agricultural area of White Hall was known for the number of dairies that served Baltimore 
City. According to Scharf, Thomas V. Hunter was considered one of the prominent dairy farmers in the area.(2) Pleasant Hunter 
worked the mill and an inn, and served the county beginning in 1875 as a County Commissioner.(3) 

Hunter Mill House is located on the east side of First Mine Branch and does appear on the 1850 Sidney Atlas. It is sited on the 
south side of what is now called Hunters Mill Road and on the east side of First Mine Branch. At this time, Thomas Hunter 
maintained a dwelling on the west side of First Mine Branch and on the north side of what is now called Hunters Mill Road. The 
1850 map shows a saw and grist mill to the east of First Mine Branch on the north side of Hunters Mill Road.(4) The 1877 
Hopkins Atlas of Baltimore County depicts the Hunter Mill House as the residence of Pleasant Hunter and the mill is called Mine 
Run Mills. The dwelling and saw and grist mill on the north side of the road are shown on the 1877 map.(5) 

Architecturally, Hunter Mill House was constructed circa 1818 in a modest Federal style. Signifying the new role that the country 
had taken following the Revolutionary War (1775-1781), the Federal style of architecture followed dominated American 
architecture from 1790 to 1830 as an updated architectural style for the new republic. High-style Federal buildings are decorated 
with carved swags and classical motifs on the exterior as well as the interior. Reflective of vernacular interpretations, particularly 
as seen in masonry examples, are the side gable roof, the centered entry capped by a transom with tracery, and the symmetrically 
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placed window openings with flat lintels and double-hung sash windows. The architecture of the Hunter Mill House is less ornate, 
suggesting a more modest interpretation of the popular style.(6) 

Constructed circa 1818, Peter G. Hunter had Hunter Mill House built on the east side of First Mine Branch. Peter Hunter had 
purchased a tract of land called Mount Joy from George Elliott. In 1824, Michael Gaul sold a portion of Vaughn's Venture to 
Hunter. Several tracts ofland were sold to Hunter in 1838 by Adam Bums and James Bosley. The entire tract owned by Peter 
Hunter at the time of his death in 1838 was just over 257 acres. In 1841, 57 Y2 acres were given to his sons Pleasant and John 
Hunter.(7) In 1843, Pleasant Hunter sold the property to Thomas V. Hunter and then it was sold back to Pleasant Hunter in 1860. 
Hunter's Mill (BA-233), a grist mill adjacent to Hunter Mill House, was constructed by Pleasant Hunter in 1863. The mill ceased 
operation in 1915 when Pleasant Hunter's estate was sold to Samuel J. Jones. John Hunter sold a portion of the property to 
Pleasant Hunter in 1869. Pleasant Hunter owned this property until his death in 1915, a period of approximately fifty-five years. 
At this time, Carey T. Hunter, executor of Pleasant Hunter's Estate, transferred the property to Isabella Hunter. It was immediately 
sold to Samuel J. Jones in 1915. Paul Grundman purchased the property in 1938 and resided here for nine years. From 1947 to 
1954, William and Grace Fowble owned the Hunter Mill Property. In 1954, the property was purchased by Pauline Sharp. The 
property continues to be under the ownership of Pauline Sharp and Hunter Mill Restoration, LLC.(8) 

CHAIN OF TITLE 

Februrary 27, 1818 

September 21, 1841 

March 11, 1843 

October 1, 1860 

March 13, 1869 

December 23, 1915 

December23, 1915 

George Elliott to Peter Hunter 
Maryland State Archives 

William Hunter to Pleasant and John Hunter 
Maryland State Archives 
Liber TK 305 Folio 499 

Pleasant Hunter and wife to Thomas V. Hunter 
Baltimore County Courthouse 
LiberTH331Folio158 

Thomas V. Hunter and wife to Pleasant Hunter 
Baltimore County Courthouse 
Liber GHC 30 Folio 454 

John Hunter and wife to Pleasant Hunter 
Baltimore County Courthouse 
Liber EHA 77 Folio 395 

Carey T. Hunter, Executor of Pleasant Hunter's Estate, to Isabella Hunter 
Baltimore County Courthouse 
Liber WPC 455 Folio 563 

Isabella A. Hunter to Samuel J. Jones and Margaret A. Jones 
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May 2, 1938 Ethel May Tracey et al to Paul and Rachel L. Grundman 
Baltimore County Courthouse 

October 16, 194 7 

August 30, 1954 

December 27, 1999 

ENDNOTES 

Liber CWB, Jr. 1032 Folio 21 

Paul E. Grundman and wife to William and Grace Fowble 
Baltimore County Courthouse 
Liber JWB 1613 Folio 137 

William A. and Grace A. Fowble to Robert J. and Pauline Sharp 
Baltimore County Courthouse 
Liber GLB 2545 Folio 480 

Pauline Sharp to Pauline Sharp 
Baltimore County Courthouse 
Liber 14280 Folio 147 
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See continuation sheet. 

10. Geographical Data 

Acreage of surveyed property 5.67 acres 
--------------~ 

Acreage of historical setting 257 acres 
--------------~ 

Quadrangle name _P_h_e_o_n_ix~M_D _________ _ Quadrangle scale 1:24 000 

Verbal boundary desaiption and justification 

Hunter's Mill House at 1719 Hunter's Mill Road is located near White Hall in the Tenth District in Baltimore County. It has 
historically been associated with tax map 17 parcel 307 since its construction. 

11. Form Prepared By 
name/title Kristie Baynard, Architectural Historian 

organization E.H.T. Traceries date 1211102 

street and number 1121 Fifth Street, NW telephone 202/393-1199 

city or town Washington state DC zip code 20001 

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland 
Legislature to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 197 4 
supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only 
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights. 

return to: Maryland Historical Trust 

DHCD/DHCP 

100 Community Place 

Crownsville MD 21032 

410-514-7600 
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r.:aryland 
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srnEET No. on Hunter's Mill Rd. 

ORIGINAL. OWNER 

ORIGINAL. USE 

PRESENT OWN ER 

PRESENT USE 

WALL CONSTRUCTION 

NO. OF STORIES 

HISTOP.IC A/.'.ERICP.N BUILDINGS SURVEY 

INVENTORY BA-~27-<f 

2. NAME Hunter's I.rill House 

DA TE OR PERIOD 

STY LE 

ARCHITECT 

BUILDER 

1863 

( FOR LIBRARY OF CONGRESS USE 

4. NOTABLE FEATURES, HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE AND DESCRIPTION OPE'N TO PUBLIC 

Rectangular brick house of symetrical plan on mill 

property. 

5. PHYSICAL CONDITION OF ~H'UCTURE Endangered 

~ 6. LOCATION MAP (Pion Optional) 

3. PUBLISHED SOURCES (Author, Title, Pages) 

INTERVIEWS, RECORDS, PHOTOS, C:TC. 

(second HABS report) 
E. Frances Offutt 
HABS COMMITTEE OF BALTD'IO~E 
COIDJTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY 
March 20, 1968 

Interior Exterior 

7. PHOTOGRAPH 

9. NAME, ADDRESS AND TITLE C1F RECORDER 

DA TE OF RECORD 


